
High Peak Borough Council

STANDARDS COMMITTEE (HPBC)AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 13 November 2019

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Board Room, Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

5 November 2019
PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter (Pages 7 - 18)

5. Standards Committee Annual Report (Pages 19 - 26)

6. Annual Review of Councillor Development (Pages 27 - 30)

7. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

PART 2
8. To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 31 - 32)

(Paragraph 1, 2 - Information relating to any individual. 
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. )

9. Complaints - Review and Monitoring Report (Pages 33 - 36)
(Paragraph 1, 2 - Information relating to any individual. 
Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Standards Committee (HPBC)
Councillor R Quinn (Chair) Councillor P N Roberts (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Abbotts Councillor T Ashton

Public Document Pack



Councillor S Gardner Councillor E Longden



High Peak Borough Council

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

Meeting: Thursday, 4 July 2019 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon Lounge, Pavilion Gardens, 
Buxton

Present: Councillor R Quinn (Chair) 

Councillors T Ashton, S Gardner, E Longden, P N Roberts and F Sloman 
(substitute for Cllr Abbotts)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor R Abbotts

In 
Attendance:

Councillor A Barrow, Mr P Matthews, Mr P Carnell and Mr P Grant.

20/1 TO RECEIVE DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST ON ANY MATTERS BEFORE 
THE COMMITTEE
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations made.

20/2 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2019 be approved as a 
correct record.

20/3 BITESIZE BRIEFING
(Agenda Item 4)

The Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer gave a presentation 
to councillors that provided an overview of the work of the Committee.  This 
included the requirements of the Localism Act 2011, the composition and 
role of the Committee, the Council’s Ethical Framework and the Committee 
work programme.

RESOLVED:

That the presentation be noted.

20/4 COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE - ETHICAL STANDARDS 
REVIEW
(Agenda Item 5)

The report informed Members of the best practice recommendations made 
by the Committee on Standards in Public Life after their recent review into 
ethical standards in local government and requested authority to adopt the Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Standards Committee (HPBC)
Thursday, 4 July 2019

recommendations into the Council’s local ethical framework where 
appropriate.

Discussion took place with regards to the criteria used by the Northern 
Ireland Public Service Ombudsman for the assessment of complaints 
(Appendix 2 of the report), specifically the six month threshold for the 
investigation of complaints.  It was agreed that it would be prudent to adapt 
this criteria to read that the Council would not, ordinarily, investigate 
complaints that occurred more than 6 months ago.

Members of the Committee were also advised that it would be useful to 
arrange for  an external review of the Council’s standards governance 
arrangements. 

RESOLVED:

1. That the contents of the report be noted and that the adoption of the 
best practice recommendations into the Council’s ethical standards 
framework where appropriate be approved.       

2. To RECOMMEND to Council that the revised Code of Conduct be 
approved as attached at Appendix 3 of the report.

3. That the initial assessment criteria attached at Appendix 2 of the report 
be adopted for use under the Council’s Arrangements for dealing with 
Standards Complaints under the Localism Act 2011, subject to 
complaints not ordinarily being investigated where they occurred more 
than six months ago.

4. That an external review of the Council’s standards governance 
arrangements take place.

20/5 CODE OF CONDUCT - DISPENSATIONS
(Agenda Item 6)

The Committee considered a report that proposed that general 
dispensations be granted to all councillors, under Section 33 (2) of the 
Localism Act 2011, in respect of the circumstances outlined in paragraphs 
6.4 and 6.7 of the report, for a period of four years.

RESOLVED:

That general dispensations be granted to all councillors, under Section 33 
(2) of the Localism Act 2011, in respect of the circumstances outlined in 
paragraphs 6.4 and 6.7 of the report, for a period of four years.

20/6 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
(Agenda Item 7)

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business as there may be disclosure Page 4



Standards Committee (HPBC)
Thursday, 4 July 2019

of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972.

20/7 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 8)

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 14 March 2019 be 
approved as a correct record.

20/8 COMPLAINTS - REVIEW AND MONITORING REPORT
(Agenda Item 9)

The Committee considered a report regarding standards complaints 
received by the Monitoring Officer since the previous meeting.

The meeting concluded at 7.16 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Standards Committee

13 November 2019

TITLE: Local Government Ombudsman Annual 
Letter

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow Executive Councillor 
for Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Customer Feedback Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendices Attached – Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To advise members of the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter for the 
period April 2018 – March 2019.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That members note the content of the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter 
(included at Appendix A).

3. Executive Summary

3.1     The Local Government Ombudsman's Annual Letter summarises complaints 
and enquiries received. The letters are published on the Ombudsman's web 
site together with specimen data used to inform the Ombudsman's Annual 
Report.

3.2 In the past year the Ombudsman received 7 enquiries or complaints, 3 did not 
meet the LGO criteria. The Ombudsman made 7 decisions within this period.  
Details of the decisions made are summarised as follows:

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Service Area Complaint Finding

Upheld 0

Not upheld (1)

Corporate and Other 
Services

The complainant is a voluntary 
group who I will refer to as 
group X. Group X says
the Council was dismissive of 
them, and prevented them from 
being a viable
option to run a listed building 
(building Y). In September 
2016, the Council
withdrew permission for group 
X to access building Y so they 
could not complete
their feasibility study and 
business plan. The Council 
allowed group X to continue
with its mission to keep the 
library within building Y, 
already knowing there was an
option for the library to move to 
another site. The Council took 
account of
inaccurate information when 
assessing group X’s 
Expression of Interest in
building Y. Group X feel the 
Council favoured another 
group and treated that
group preferably. The Council 
failed to adequately respond to 
group X’s
complaints.
2. Group X also says the 
Council delayed

Group X complains of 
Council bias and 
mistreatment of it
when it was putting 
together a proposal to 
manage a listed building
held in Trust. The 
Ombudsman has found 
no evidence of fault
causing a significant 
injustice in the way the 
Council considered these
matters.

Closed after initial enquiries (3)

Corporate and Other 
Services

Complaints about the Council’s 
handling of his councillor 
conduct complaint and about its 
response to his freedom of 
information request.

The Ombudsman will not 
investigate Mr X’s 
complaint
about the Council’s 
investigation into his 
councillor conduct 
complaint.
The Ombudsman cannot 

Page 8



investigate complaints 
about councillors
acting as private 
individuals, it is unlikely 
we could add to the
Council’s investigation 
into the matter and it has 
not caused Mr X
significant injustice
 

Planning&Development The complainants, Mr and Mrs 
X, complain the Council told 
them it would take enforcement 
action against their neighbour 
for a breach of planning control 
but
has now decided it will not. 
They say they are suffering 
noise, disturbance and
overlooking from their 
neighbour’s development.

The Ombudsman will not 
investigate this 
complaint. This is 
because it is unlikely
we would find fault in the 
Council’s decision not to 
take formal enforcement 
action
against their neighbour 
and we cannot achieve 
the outcome Mr and Mrs 
X want.

Planning&Development
Summary: Ms X complains 
about the Council’s approval of 
a planning
application for a development 
which had previously been 
refused on
appeal. The Ombudsman will 
not investigate this complaint 
because
the matter is out of time

.
The Ombudsman will not 
investigate this 
complaint. This is 
because the matter is
out of time.

Advice Given (1)

Housing We did not receive details of 
this complaint from the LGO

Referred back for local resolution (2)

Environmental 
Services & Public 
Protection & 
Regulation

We did not receive details of 
this complaint from the LGO

Housing We did not receive details of 
this complaint from the LGO

3.3  A copy of the Ombudsman's letter is attached as an appendix to this report.

Page 9



3.4 The Council received no decisions from the Housing Ombudsman.  The 
Housing Ombudsman Service does not provide an annual letter.

3.5 Members may also wish to note that the small number of complaints reaching 
the Ombudsman is set against a background of 223 complaints received by 
the Council in the period in question, which helps to illustrate the strength of 
the Council in ensuring complaints are dealt with promptly and appropriately.  

3.6 Below is a table showing Local Government Ombudsman figures for 13 Local 
Authorities.  The average for upheld complaints across the 13 authorities is 
50%.  

Figures for Upheld / Not upheld
(detailed investigations carried out)

Complaints 
and 

enquiries 
received 
2018/19

Decisions 
made 

2018/19

Upheld Not upheld Total % 
Upheld

Cannock Chase 8 8 0 0 0 0%

Castle Point 6 5 0 1 1 0%

Chorley 10 12 4 3 7 43%
Fenland 13 14 3 1 4 25%
Forest of Dean 16 18 2 3 5 60%
High Peak Borough Council 7 7 0 1 1 0%
Hinckley & Bosworth 11 7 0 0 0 0%
Kettering 24 22 2 1 3 33%
Rugby 9 11 3 1 4 25%
Selby 15 15 1 2 3 67%
South Derbyshire 5 7 1 1 2 50%
Staffordshire Moorlands 5 6 2 0 2 43%
Wyre Forest 6 5 0 5 5 0%

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1  Complaints are important in assisting the Council to understand how well it 
performs in its ambition to be a customer first organisation

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider

 

Page 10



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
Not applicable

6.2 Workforce
Not applicable

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies.

An effective complaints procedure is an important tool in ensuring 
that an equality of service is available to all users of the Council’s 
services. 

6.4 Financial Considerations
None arise from this report

6.5 Legal
The monitoring and appropriate handling of complaints are 
required by the Local Government Ombudsman in its quasi-judicial 
role, and by the Audit Commission as an indicator that appropriate 
governance structures are in operation.

6.6 Sustainability
Not Applicable

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
Not Applicable

6.8 Risk Assessment
Not Applicable

Mary Walker
Assistant Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Customer Feedback Officer
Feedback@highpeak.gov.uk 

Page 11

mailto:Feedback@highpeak.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

24 July 2019 
 
By email 
 
Simon Baker 
Chief Executive 
High Peak Borough Council 
 
 
Dear Mr Baker 
 
Annual Review letter 2019 
 
I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the complaints made to the Local 

Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending 31 

March 2019. The enclosed tables present the number of complaints and enquiries received 

about your authority, the decisions we made, and your authority’s compliance with 

recommendations during the period. I hope this information will prove helpful in assessing 

your authority’s performance in handling complaints.  

Complaint statistics 

As ever, I would stress that the number of complaints, taken alone, is not necessarily a 

reliable indicator of an authority’s performance. The volume of complaints should be 

considered alongside the uphold rate (how often we found fault when we investigated a 

complaint), and alongside statistics that indicate your authority’s willingness to accept fault 

and put things right when they go wrong. We also provide a figure for the number of cases 

where your authority provided a satisfactory remedy before the complaint reached us, and 

new statistics about your authority’s compliance with recommendations we have made; both 

of which offer a more comprehensive and insightful view of your authority’s approach to 

complaint handling.  

The new statistics on compliance are the result of a series of changes we have made to how 

we make and monitor our recommendations to remedy the fault we find. Our 

recommendations are specific and often include a time-frame for completion, allowing us to 

follow up with authorities and seek evidence that recommendations have been implemented. 

These changes mean we can provide these new statistics about your authority’s compliance 

with our recommendations.  

I want to emphasise the statistics in this letter reflect the data we hold and may not 

necessarily align with the data your authority holds. For example, our numbers include 

Page 13



enquiries from people we signpost back to your authority, some of whom may never contact 

you. 

In line with usual practice, we are publishing our annual data for all authorities on our 

website, alongside our annual review of local government complaints. For the first time, this 

includes data on authorities’ compliance with our recommendations. This collated data 

further aids the scrutiny of local services and we encourage you to share learning from the 

report, which highlights key cases we have investigated during the year. 

New interactive data map 

In recent years we have been taking steps to move away from a simplistic focus on 

complaint volumes and instead focus on the lessons learned and the wider improvements 

we can achieve through our recommendations to improve services for the many. Our 

ambition is outlined in our corporate strategy 2018-21 and commits us to publishing the 

outcomes of our investigations and the occasions our recommendations result in 

improvements for local services.   

The result of this work is the launch of an interactive map of council performance on our 

website later this month. Your Council’s Performance shows annual performance data for all 

councils in England, with links to our published decision statements, public interest reports, 

annual letters and information about service improvements that have been agreed by each 

council. It also highlights those instances where your authority offered a suitable remedy to 

resolve a complaint before the matter came to us, and your authority’s compliance with the 

recommendations we have made to remedy complaints. 

The intention of this new tool is to place a focus on your authority’s compliance with 

investigations. It is a useful snapshot of the service improvement recommendations your 

authority has agreed to. It also highlights the wider outcomes of our investigations to the 

public, advocacy and advice organisations, and others who have a role in holding local 

councils to account.   

I hope you, and colleagues, find the map a useful addition to the data we publish. We are 

the first UK public sector ombudsman scheme to provide compliance data in such a way and 

believe the launch of this innovative work will lead to improved scrutiny of councils as well as 

providing increased recognition to the improvements councils have agreed to make following 

our interventions. 

Complaint handling training 

We have a well-established and successful training programme supporting local authorities 

and independent care providers to help improve local complaint handling. In 2018-19 we 

delivered 71 courses, training more than 900 people, including our first ‘open courses’ in 

Effective Complaint Handling for local authorities. Due to their popularity we are running six 

more open courses for local authorities in 2019-20, in York, Manchester, Coventry and 

London. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Finally, I am conscious of the resource pressures that many authorities are working within, 

and which are often the context for the problems that we investigate. In response to that 

situation we have published a significant piece of research this year looking at some of the 

Page 14

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/about-us/our-aims/our-mission-and-objectives
https://www.lgo.org.uk/your-councils-performance
http://www.lgo.org.uk/training


common issues we are finding as a result of change and budget constraints. Called, Under 

Pressure, this report provides a contribution to the debate about how local government can 

navigate the unprecedented changes affecting the sector. I commend this to you, along with 

our revised guidance on Good Administrative Practice. I hope that together these are a 

timely reminder of the value of getting the basics right at a time of great change.  

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 
 

Michael King 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2018/dec/councils-mustn-t-throw-out-the-rule-book-in-the-face-of-pressure-says-ombudsman
https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/guidance-notes/principles-of-good-administrative-practice


Local Authority Report: High Peak Borough Council 

For the Period Ending: 31/03/2019  

 

For further information on how to interpret our statistics, please visit our website  

 
Complaints and enquiries received  
 

Adult Care 
Services 

Benefits and 
Tax 

Corporate 
and Other 
Services 

Education 
and 

Children’s 
Services 

Environment 
Services 

Highways 
and 

Transport 
Housing 

Planning and 
Development 

Other Total 

0 1 1 0 1 0 2 2 0 7 

 

Decisions made 
 

Detailed Investigations  

Incomplete or 
Invalid 

Advice 
Given 

Referred 
back for 

Local 
Resolution 

Closed After 
Initial 

Enquiries 
Not Upheld Upheld Uphold Rate (%) Total 

0 1 2 3 1 0 0 7 

Note: The uphold rate shows how often we found evidence of fault. It is expressed as a percentage of the total number of detailed investigations we completed. 

 

Satisfactory remedy provided by authority  

Upheld cases where the authority had provided a satisfactory 
remedy before the complaint reached the Ombudsman 

% of upheld 
cases 

0 0 

Note: These are the cases in which we decided that, while the authority did get things wrong, it offered a 
satisfactory way to resolve it before the complaint came to us. 

P
age 16

https://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/reports/annual-review-reports/interpreting-local-authority-statistics


Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations  

Complaints where compliance 
with the recommended remedy 
was recorded during the year* 

Complaints where the 
authority complied with 

our recommendations on-
time  

 

Complaints where the authority 
complied with our 

recommendations late  
 

Complaints where the 
authority has not 
complied with our 
recommendations  

 

 
 
 

1 
1 0 0 Number 

100% - Compliance rate** 

Notes:  
* This is the number of complaints where we have recorded a response (or failure to respond) to our recommendation for a remedy during the reporting year. This includes complaints that may have been 
decided in the preceding year but where the data for compliance falls within the current reporting year. 
** The compliance rate is based on the number of complaints where the authority has provided evidence of their compliance with our recommendations to remedy a fault. This includes instances where an 
authority has accepted and implemented our recommendation but provided late evidence of that. 
 

 P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Standards Committee 

13 November 2019

TITLE: Standards Committee Annual Report

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Linden Vernon – Senior Officer (Governance 
and Member Support)

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendix A – Role of the Committee

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To review the work of the Standards Committee during 2018/2019.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report provides an overview of the issues considered by the Standards 
Committee during 2018/19.  This included the following matters:

 Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 
Conduct

 The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman
 Review of Exemptions from Paying Charges to the Information 

Commissioner's Office
 Annual Review of Councillor Development
 Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review

Page 19

Agenda Item 5



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 High standards of conduct are integral to the Council achieving its corporate 
priorities.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Standards Committee Reports
Committee on Standards in Public Life – 7 Principles of 
Public Life

Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and Member 
Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 Article 9 of the Council’s Constitution defines the role of the Standards 
Committee and is shown in full in Appendix A to this report.  In summary this 
includes:

 Promoting high standards of conduct amongst councillors and making 
sure they are properly trained

 Granting dispensations to Borough councillors
 Ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place for dealing with 

allegations into breaches of the Code of Conduct
 Hearing representations from councillors who may become disqualified 

for not attending meetings
 Advising the Council on Members’ allowances

6.2 The current membership of the committee is provided below. The Council’s 
Independent Persons continue to be invited to attend and participate at 
Committee meetings.  

Borough Councillors Cllr Rachel Quinn (Chair)
Cllr Peter Roberts (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Rachel Abbotts
Cllr Tony Ashton
Cllr Stewart Gardner
Cllr Edith Longdon

Co-opted Town/Parish 
representatives (non-voting)

Vacant positions x 2

Independent Persons Mr Peter Matthews
Mr Philip Carnall (substitute)
Mr Peter Grant (substitute)

Page 20

https://democracy.highpeak.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=148
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLO4xn0gFY8rx2an6GM112Q
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLO4xn0gFY8rx2an6GM112Q


Monitoring complaints received regarding alleged breaches of the Code of 
Conduct

6.3 The Committee continued to receive regular complaint monitoring reports 
regarding alleged breaches of the Code of Conduct.  These reports updated 
members on the number and nature of complaints dealt with by the Monitoring 
Officer and explained:

 If these related to borough or town/parish councillors
 If any further action should be taken
 If further investigations were considered to be appropriate

6.4 This information is then used to identify trends and consider themes for which 
training seminars may be planned.  The table below summarises the 
complaints received for the previous years and compares these with the 
Authority’s Strategic Alliance partner, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 
(SMDC).

No. of ComplaintsYear
High 
Peak 

Parish 
Cllr

High 
Peak 

Borough 
Cllr

High 
Peak 
Total

Staffordshire 
Moorlands

Parish
Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands

District
Cllr

Staffordshire 
Moorlands 

Total

2013/14 10 1 11 3 1 4
2014/15 2 1 3 5 1 6
2015/16 4 0 4 3 12 15
2016/17 4 2 6 9 16 25
2017/18 1 3 4 5 8 13
2018/19 2 1 3 2 9 11

The Annual Letter received from the Local Government Ombudsman 

6.5 The Annual Letter of the Local Government Ombudsman was considered by 
the Committee at its meeting in November 2018.  The table below provides a 
summary of the number of complaints dealt with by the Ombudsman set 
against the total number of complaints received by the Authority.  For 
comparison purposes figures for previous years are also provided together 
with details for SMDC.

No. of Ombudsman Complaints
HPBC SMDC

Year

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

2012/13 10 404 14 439
2013/14 20* 372 12 280
2014/15 12 413 10 284

Page 21



Year No. of Ombudsman Complaints
HPBC SMDC

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

No. of 
Enquiries 

or 
Complaints

Total 
Number of 
Complaints

2015/16 11 368 13 258
2016/17 8* 448 10 245
2017/18 15 308 12 193

* This includes one complaint from the Housing Ombudsman Service.  

6.6 The relatively small number of complaints that reach the Ombudsman 
compared to the total number of complaints received by the Authority 
illustrates the strength of the Council in ensuring complaints are dealt with 
promptly and appropriately.

Review of Exemptions from Paying Charges to the Information Commissioner's 
Office

6.7 The Data Protection (Charges and Information) Regulations 2018 required 
data controllers who are processing personal information to pay a charge to 
the ICO, unless they are exempt. A number of exemptions are available for 
individuals and organisations from paying charges to the Information 
Commissioner. The Government considered that there was merit in reviewing 
the exemptions to ensure that they were still appropriate to the current time, 
and fit for the digital age.  

6.8 Historically, a notification fee had been paid by the Borough Council and 
political parties to the ICO in their capacity as a data controller.  In February 
2018 the Council agreed to register all Councillors with the ICO, and meet the 
registration costs (£35 each).

6.9 The consultation document sought views on a number of proposed 
exemptions.  This included a possible exemption for elected representatives 
(separate to their elected assembly or political party) given that they are 
classed as data controllers in their own right particularly where they engage 
with and undertake casework on behalf of their constituents. 

6.10 Government had previously committed to considering the appropriateness of 
elected representatives being required to pay a charge in respect of their 
processing of personal data and was minded that this activity deriving from 
their public office and public function should not be liable to a charge. The 
Government also wished to avoid barriers to democratic engagement, 
mirroring the approach that the Government had taken during the passage of 
the Data Protection Act through Parliament. 

6.11 Following the consultation exercise the Data Protection (Charges and 
Information) (Amendment) Regulations 2019 were issued (effective from 1 
April 2019) and exempted the processing of personal data by members of the 
House of Lords, elected representatives and prospective representatives.

Page 22



Annual Review of Councillor Development

6.12 The Councillor Development Programme was focused on consolidating 
members’ requirements following the completion of the Induction Programme 
implemented after the May 2015 local elections.  The programme also aimed 
to address any changes in legislation and the Council’s priorities.

6.13 Generally, all Members are invited to attend all events, with some seminars, 
particularly around regulatory matters, such as Development Control and 
Licensing, being essential for members of those committees to attend in order 
to fulfil requirements as set out in the Council’s Constitution.

6.14 The Development Programme included the following seminars / activities:

Seminar Date No. of attendees
Access issues in High Peak, including 
Designing for Diversity and the essential 
principles for achieving an inclusive 
environment

10.10.17 8

Emergency Planning 08.11.17 9
Licensing 19.1.18

2.2.18
15.3.18

2
3
5

Risk Management 27.3.18 6
Code of Conduct Refresher (includes 
parishes councillors and Independent 
persons)

24.4.18 18

General Data Protection Regulations 14.5.18 12
Development Control 23.10.18 13

Committee on Standards in Public Life - Ethical Standards Review

6.15 The Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) considers that robust 
standards arrangements are needed to safeguard local democracy, maintain 
high standards of conduct, and to protect ethical practice in local government. 

6.16 In 2018, the CSPL undertook a review of local government ethical standards. 
The Council responded to the consultation exercise which informed the report. 
The Committee considered the report’s findings which included areas such as:

 The use of Codes of Conduct
 Allegations of bullying
 The use of Social Media
 Sanctions available
 The role of the Independent Person, Monitoring Officer, Local 

Government Ombudsman and Parish Clerks
 Arrangements for disclosure of interests
 The intimidation of councillors

6.17 The Committee received a further report on these findings in July 2019.

Page 23



6.18 To mark the 25th anniversary of the establishment of the CSPL in October 
2019 it has published a series of short films about the 7 Nolan Principles of 
Public Life and what they mean in practice.  The films can be viewed here.

Page 24

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCLO4xn0gFY8rx2an6GM112Q


APPENDIX A

ARTICLE 9

THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

9.1 Role 

(a) The Council will establish a Standards Committee to carry out the 
functions set out more fully in Part 3 of the Constitution. These include, 
promoting high standards of conduct amongst councillors and making 
sure they are properly trained; granting dispensations; ensuring that 
appropriate arrangements are in place for dealing with allegations into 
breaches of the Code of Conduct; hearing representations from 
councillors who may become disqualified for not attending meetings; 
advising the Council on Members’ allowances. 

9.2 Composition

(a) Membership

The Standards Committee will be composed of:

 six members of the Council appointed proportionally

 up to two Town or Parish Council members who may be co-opted 
on to the Committee as non-voting members

(b) Independent Person

The Council’s Independent Person (and their substitutes) will be invited 
to attend meetings of the Standards Committee and will be entitled an 
allowance and to the same subsistence and travelling allowances as 
elected members.

(c) Parish/Town Councillors

Where a complaint refers to a Parish/Town Councillor, hereafter known 
as a Parish Councillor, a non-voting Parish member of the Standards 
Committee may also attend any Hearing Panel and will be entitled to an 
allowance and the same subsistence and travelling allowances as 
elected members.

9.3 Other functions

(a) The Hearings Panel (a Sub-Committee of the Council’s Standards 
Committee) shall comprise a maximum of five councillors of the 

Page 25



Council’s Standards Committee, including not more than one member 
of the authority’s Executive. The appointed Hearings Panel shall 
nominate a Hearings Panel Chair.  The Independent Person shall be 
invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings Panel.  Where a 
complaint refers to a Parish Councillor, a non-voting Parish member of 
the Standards Committee may also attend any Hearing Panel.

(b) The Committee will hear appeals from officers who do not wish to 
appear as witnesses before a select committee (see Protocol for 
Officers in Part 4 of the Constitution); monitor complaints received by 
the Ombudsman; monitor the member development programme and 
evaluate its effectiveness.

Page 26



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Standards Committee

13 November 2019

TITLE: Annual Review of Councillor Development

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Rachel Rourke – Community and Member 
Services Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Appendix 1 – List of sessions and attendance

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To review the Councillor Development Programme for 2018/19, including the 
Councillor Induction Programme held after the elections in May 2019. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the report be noted.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Councillor Induction Programme was developed in conjunction with a 
cross party group of members, taking into account the priority areas for 
members training and feedback received following the induction programme 
held in 2015.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Providing effective training and development opportunities for councillors is 
integral to the achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities.

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



5. Alternative Options

5.1 None.  In accordance with the council’s constitution, elements of the induction 
programme are essential for members to be able to serve on particular 
committees.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

None Linden Vernon
Senior Officer (Governance and Member 
Support)
linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6. Detail

6.1 The aim of the Councillors’ Development Programme and Councillors’ 
Induction Programme is to ensure that Councillors are supported to deliver the 
Council’s statutory and corporate obligations, objectives and priorities and to 
provide them with the information they need to fulfil their roles.

6.2 A programme of learning and development opportunities is developed for all 
councillors, which is updated on a rolling basis and in response to emerging 
priorities and changes in legislation for example.

6.3 For the Councillors’ Induction Programme 2019, a programme of learning and 
development opportunities was developed in conjunction with a cross party 
group of members, which also took feedback received following the 2015 
induction process into account.  The programme focussed on the priority areas 
for member training, such as training in regulatory matters, to enable members 
to participate on those committees, but also provided an introduction to areas 
such as scrutiny.  Other areas which would more generally benefit councillors’ 
roles in the community such as the General Data Protection Regulation 
(GDPR) and safeguarding were also offered.

6.4 A total of 12 sessions were held as part of the induction process in addition to 
Bite Size Briefings at the first meeting of each committee. Appendix 1 provides 
details of the sessions held and details of the numbers attending.

6.5 Some events, such as the Code of Conduct training, were also attended by 
Parish Councillors / Clerks and Independent Persons of the Standards 
Committee as appropriate.

6.6 The majority of sessions were organised internally and delivered by officers, 
as this method has previously proved to be the most cost effective and 
feedback from councillors supports the use of in-house expertise.

Page 28



6.7 Members are requested to complete evaluation forms after each session. 
Scores and comments are compiled and circulated to each course provider to 
be used to inform the structure and content of future courses.

6.8 In addition to the main induction programme, IT training was provided with the 
roll out of new equipment for members.

6.9 Prior to the induction programme, the remainder of the training programme in 
2018/19 focussed on consolidating members’ skills and providing continuing 
development opportunities as follows:

Session Date No of attendees
Development Control 23 October and 2 

November 2018
15

Licensing 7 March 2019 9

Page 29



APPENDIX 1

Session Feedback
Welcome Meetings (13 & 15 May 
2019)

17 Councillors attended

Code of Conduct 11 June and 19 
September 2019)

25 Councillors attended

Licensing 4 July 2019 8 Councillors attended

Development Control Seminars (17 
May, 3 June and 22 July 2019)

32 Councillors attended

Chairing Skills (3 September 2019) 10 Councillors attended

Data Protection (10 September 2019) 12 Councillors attended

Financial Awareness Seminar (16 
September 2019)

9 Councillors attended

Safeguarding (14 October 2019) 8 Councillors attended

Page 30



Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter
	Appendix A 1 for Local Government Ombudsman Annual Letter

	5 Standards Committee Annual Report
	Standards Committee Annual Report Appendix

	6 Annual Review of Councillor Development
	8 To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting
	9 Complaints - Review and Monitoring Report

